
U~~ITED NATiONS 

l , E C 0 ~·~ () tV\ I C 
Al'\f D 

GENSRJ..L 

E/CH.6/SR.l06 
21 hay 1952 

.6J·,GLISH 

SC)CIAL (~OLJI'~CIL OriGinal: ENGLISH and 
FRZNCH 

CONT~UTS: 

Dual Di~ribution 

CO~uSSION 0N THE 8TATUS OF WOMEN 

. Sixth Session 

SUI"ll•.JillY RECORD OF THE OHE. HUNDRED AND SIXTH .t-.tEETING 
... 

held at the Palais d~s Nations, Geneva: 
on Wednes~ay, 26 ~iarch, 1952, at 3 Porno 

Political rights of women (item 3 of the agenda) 
(continued): 

(b) rleporton the action taken on the draft convention 
on poJ.itical rights of wor.,en adopted by the 
Commission at its fifth session (£/CN.o/184 and Add.l 
and 2 thereto, E/CN.6/L.58, 1E/CN.6/L.59, £/Cl~.6/L.60, 
~/CN.6/L.61, E/CN.6/L.61/Corr.l) (continued) 



E/CN .6/SR.l06 
page 2 

Present: 

Chairman: Mrs. LEFAUCH3UX (France) 

Members: 

}.iiss LUTZ 

Mrs. NYJIN 

1-lrs. NOVlKOVA 

Hrs. FIGUEROA 

hiss TsmG 
~lisa }'.AN.A.S 

~rs. de l 10FFICIAL 

, ~irs • FIROUZ 

hrs. TABi:!:T 

hi ss .P EL:;TIER 

hrs. RuSS 

Begum Fida Hh.SSAN 

hiss KALINO~vSK;~ 

}irs • . eOPOVA 

Nrs. GOLDNAN 

Representatives of specialized agencies: 

Brazil 

Burma 

Byelorussian Soviet 
Socialist Republic 

Chile 

China 

Cuba 

Don~nican Republic 

Iran 

Lebanon 

Netherlands 

New Zealand 

Pakistan. 

Poland 

Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republies 

United States of America 

International Labour Organisation 

United Nations Educational, 
Scientific and Cultural Organization 

Miss FAIRCHilD 

}lliss DAS 

Representatives of non-governmental organizations: 

Category A 

World Federation of Trade Unions 

Int~rnational Confederation of Free 
Trade Unions 

Category 'B 

Catholic International.Union for 
Social Service 

Conference Intcrnationale des 
Charites Catholigues (replacing 
Caritas Int0rnationalis) 

1-lrs. CHIOST&·:GI 

Mrs. ETIENNE 

Mrs. SOUDAN 

!-lisa OST.uRTAG 



E/CN .6/~R.106 
page 3 

R~presentatives of non-governmental organizations (continued): · 

Category B (continued) 

International association of Penal Law 

In~~rnational Bureau for the Unification 
of Penal Law 

International Council of Women 

International Federation of Business 
and Professional Women 

Interno.tional Federation of Friends of 
. Young Women 

I 

International Federation of University 
Women 

International League for the Rights of 
Man . , 

Liaison Committee of Women's 
International Organizations 

Ppx Romana 

_Women 1 s ·International League for Peace 
And Freedom 

World Union for Progressive Judaism 

Register · 

A·ssociated Country Women of the vJo:rld 

Open Door International 

st. Joan's International Social and 
?olitical Alliance 

Secretariat: 

hrs. Tenison-Woods 

hrs. Grinberg-Vinaver 

I • • • 

) 
) 
) 

Nrs. ROMUCIANO 

!Y'J.iss van EEGHEN 

Nrs. 1-IDJER 
Miss TOhLINSON 

Mrs. BERTHOUD van h7ERV~ 

Mrs~ \VIELE-GAILLARD 

Hrs. B:.::::R 

·Mrs. HU:iillt 
Hiss B!JtRY 

Niss J'Jl.CHIN .t":RD 

1,.rs. BAER 

Lady N· •• THf.N of CHURT 

l 
Mrs. BAER 

Representative of the 
Secretary-General 

_Secretary to the Commission 



.i:;fCl~ ,6/SR.l06 
page 4 

POLITICAL I:tiGfiTS OF ~D£·d'4 (iterr1 J of the at..enda) (continued); 

(b) Report on the action taken on the ·drbft convention on politic~l rights ot 
women adopted by the Commission at its fifth soesion (E/CN.6/184.and Add.l and 
2 thereto, (E/CN.6/L.5S, E/CN.6/L.59, E/CN.6/L.60, E/CN.6/L.61 and . 
E/CN.6/L.61/Corr.l) 

. . 

l>irs6 FIGUEROA (Chile), continuing the statement sh~ had begun · at the 

previous meeting, wished to cormnent on the amendments and additions (E/Cl~ .6/1.60 

submitted by the Soviet Union representative to the draft conVIlltion. 

The Chilean dclegat~on was in full agreement with the principle that there 

should be no discrimination on grounds of race, colour, nationality, b~rth, 

property status, language- or reli~on, During its six years of participation in 

the work of the Comndssion on Human Rights, the Chilean delegation had constantly 

and consistently urged that that prine~ple should be given its ' due place in the 

Universal Declaration of Human Rights and in t~e draft Internationa! Covenant on 

Human Rights, It had also made st~ng representations to that effect in the 

Third Committee of the Gener·al Assembly whenever the question of clauses 

prohibiting dis7rimination had arisen. horeoyer, she reeogrrl.zed .that 

discriJ .. ination on the grounds mentioned in the_ Soviet Union text was practised · irl 

cartain countries, and in h~r opinion that fact should not be overlooked; but 

where such discrimination did exist, it was -exercised as much against men as 
' against women, althou!)l it was true that in everyday life it was often harder on 

the women. 

!Jevertheless, the probl~m, where it existed, was one that affected both 
l 

sexes equally. In those circumstances the CoLlh&ission was nt't called upon to 

include such a clause in a draft convention on the political rights of women •. 

Regrettabla thou6h it might be, the Com;;.ission' s terms of raference did not permit . . 
it to deal with matters concerning the rights of both sexes~ Moreover, the 

Economic and Social Council had cffinaed, in resolution 4S (IV), that "The 

Comn.ission shall ~lso make r.::commendations to the Council on ~rgent problems 

. requiring i~ediate attention in the field of . woman's rights ~th the object of 

implementing the prin~iple that men and women sltall have :equal rights •. •" • ,Thus 

.1;-he Commission's task was to secure equality' of status with men fo.r the women 

of all countries; and even though, in certain States, the legal and social status 

of men was not satisfactor.YI the Commission was not qualified to recommend that 



E/CN .6/SR.l06 
page 5 

women be given a better 'stp,tus than them. , The · in t :imi - campa~gn r.ga s di~cr· natory 

measures in gener_al was directly within the competence of the Commission on 

Human Rights alone. The sole conc~rn of the Corumission on the St~tus of Women 

should be to oppose discrirrd.nation based _ on sex. 

Therefore, although she -approved of the principle stated in the Soviet Union 

proposal, she did not think that it could be included in the draft convention on 

pOlitical. rights of women. Appropriate provisions had already been embodied in 

the Universal Declaration of Huiuan Ri~ts, and would appear in the International 

Covenant on Human Rights. She was far from the _ opinion that certain problems 

sho\U.d be neglacted or referred t?. other bodies; but the Commission shoul4 not 

go beyond its terms of reference. 

~he thought that the Soviet Union amendment to Article 2, which sought the 

inclusion of a reference to central and local elective bodies, was valuable, and 

~s prepared to incorporate it in har own text- if the Soviet Union representative 

agreed. 

On the other hand, she \\Qndered whether the new •'.rticle 4 proposed by the 

Sovi.et Union delegation would be useful. By acceding to and ratifying an 

inte~tional convention, Stat~s implicitly undertook to adopt all necessary 

tr1easures to give· it effect; and in particular to amend their national legislation 

appropriately. Of course, ;:)tates sometimes failed to irilplement that in1plicit 

undertaking; but no action could be taken against them in international l~w. 

It 'Wvuld tharefore · appear that articl\3 4, if adopted, would rer.1ain a dead letter, 

Lastly, the Chilean delegation a~ed with the Soviet Union delegation that 

an effort shuuld be niClde to extend the application· of the conv8ntion to all 

territories, what8ver their status. Having participated in the work of the 

Fourth Committee of th~ Gen~ral i.sserubly, the Chilean delegation was well aware of 

the situation, and considerc~ the adoption of the nec'essarJ measures a matter of 

urgencyo But th~:re again th~ -problen, was one that concerned both men and women, 

and since the CorJraission r:iust _cc..nfine itself to improvinb the st1:1tus of women it 

shculd leave the j'Ji.~iati:ve in . the L>a'tter ·vf the tarritorial application <.~f the 

Convantion of tha Trustt:vship Council and thu Fourth Committee of the General 

Asseu,bly. 



I 
I 

E/CN.6/SR.lo6 
pat,e 6 

Roavt:1rting to her own proposal (E/CN.6/L.59), she repeat;;d that · she was 

prepared to incorporate in l~rticle 2 thereof the reference to publicly elected 

bodies proposed by the Natherlands representative. 

The wording of tne Chilean text was clearer ahd shorter than that adopted by 

the Commission at its fifth session, although there were no substantive differences 

between tht! two. ~loreover, the CMl~an t~xt had the advantage of making it easier 
' 

for women to be, not only elected, but also appointed, to public office on equal 

tenns with men, which was not provided fvr in the text submitted by the United 

States delegation. 

Miss T~~~G (China) noted that the Soviet Union amendments to the three 

articles of the original draft conv~ntion (~/CN.6/1S4, pa~e 2) rdferred to 

discri.ination on s~veral grounds, but omitted reference to . discr~rdnation on 

grounds of political views. In her opinion, it was most important that .there 

should be no such discrirrdnation, but its existence was making itself only too . 

painfully felt in her own country, where women who held political opinions hostile 

to the regime at present in control of the country were being subjected to cruel 

persecution. 

Mrs. FIROUZ (Iran) proposed on behalf of her own delegation and that of 

Lebanon that the original resolution containing the draft convention as approved 

by the Cor1mrl.ssion at its fifth session (E/CN .b/lB4, pagas 1 and 2) should be 

retained unchanged. 

}J.rs. GOLlli'uJl (United Statas of Am~ric.a) said that both at past sessions 

and at the present session of the Commission the United States delegation had 

attempted to take a consistent position. It had always rr1aintained, and still 

.c•aintained, - that -a convention was d~sirabl~ in the interests of women in certain 

countril:ls; at the ~ante time, it had always maintained, and still maintained, that 

such a convention was not really necessary for t~e United States· of America 

itself. It was pe.rfectly logical that the Unit~d .::ltates delegation should make a 

reservation if specific r~ferences were made to the eligibility of women for 

public appoint~ent, ~nee otherwise the United States Governrr.ent rr~ght be involved 



' 
I 

I_ 

E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 7 

in difficulties in connc.xion with military apiJo,intments, for which United States 

women, who were not liable for mill ~ry s arvice, were naturally nut eligible. 

That was not. to say that . a large numbdr of posts to ' which public appointments 

were made were_ not op~n to American womJn: as she had already ,said, there were 

large numbers of women in the Unit0d ::>tat :s civil service, particul~rly in 

,udicidl posts. ' In any case, the Chilean representative, in proposing the 

inclusion in the dr:;ft convention of ·a specific ref-Jrence to eligibility for 

appointnkmt, w_ae probably under-e_stimc.ting the political capa ci ti~s of wom~n who, 
J 

once they .mjoyed ~l voting rights, would be certain to see that their sex 

received a fair share. of public appointm~nts. That, indeed, was the only way in 

which women would get them, 

She approved of certain of the arr.enrunents . proposed by the Chilean- represent­

ative to the draft convention: , ~n p~rticular, the phrase "on equal tJrms with men" 

Ee~rned preferable to the phrase 11on the same conditions as men". -~>lith regard to .. 

the Chilean repres(;ntative' s acceptance of the Sovi0t Union delegation's proposed 

ad:iition ,)f the words 11 central and local", .she was inclined to think that that 
. . / 

:edification was unnect:ssary, and might prove arubiguous. She considered that 

the wording "all public offict:::su used in the United 0tates text would adequately 

cover all possible: contingencies. 

In conclusion, she ·appeal~d to Npres-:ntatives to subordinate ~heir personal 

pr . .:ferences for certain texts to the 'need fur reaching agreement, and so endowing 

the under-privileg0d woman of the world with the rights that really _belonged to 

them. 

Hiss b.LU~hS - (Cuba) consider;:d that the Brazilian proposal (E/CN .6/L.58) 

went outside the Coinmission' s terms of referl3nce by roferring to "citizens" in 

the first parag~aph, inst~ad , of to women only, The Soviet Union proposals 

(!:/CtZ.6/L.60) ·went cv.::ln further beyond the Cor.mdssion' s ten.ts of r~ference ·by 

introducing subjects which were clearly_ within the comfietence of other United 

l:ations bodies. .hrticle J in the United StatJs text (E/CN .6/L ~61) was 

;,nsatisfactory, bucause it did not form..::1lly stato the ril,ht of wom.,;n to hold public 



E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 8 

appointments. On the whole, therefore, it seemed that the Chilean proposal 

{E/CN.6/L.S9) was the most satisfactory, since it was concise, cleor, and abovQ all 

placed special emphasis on the winning for women of equality with men, which waa 

perhaps the Conunission•s principal aim. For that reason the Cuban delegation 

would support the Chilean proposal. 

l1iss PEL..;TL.l\ {Netherlands) agreed with the criticisms made of the 

Soviet Union proposal, which c~rtainly introduced extraneous issues. The other 

three proposals did not err in that respect, but they were none the lese 

unsatisfactory in th~t they were attempts to touch up an dXisting text, and such 

attempts we:~. ·e rarely completely successful. The Brazilian proposal was an attempt 

to shorten the · original draft convention, despite the general agreement that the 

first version was satisfactor,y from the point of view of brevity. As to the 

United States draft, its omission of the conception of the right to hold public 

appointllients, as distinct from the right to be ~lec~ed to public office, was a 

8~MQUit do£6ot. with. ~~ard to the Chilean proposal; while it ~s true that it 

was satisfactory in content, it was inferior to the original text in form: the 

logical division of the latter into three parts, comprising articles on the rigbt 

to ~lect, to be el~cted, and to hold office, wae su~ly pr~ferable, For those 
. . . 

rdasons the N~therlands delegation supported the proposal of the Iranian and 

Lebanese representatives that the dr~ft convention, as approved by the Comcission 

at its fi~th session, should be retained unsmended. 

,.irs. .NOVIKOVA {Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 'Republic) considered that 
I 

both the original druft convention and ~hree of the proposals seeking to amend 

it all suffered from the same defects of inadequac,y and incompleteness, The 
. ; 

principal excuse advanced to justify those lacunae had been that the Commission 

on the Status of Women was not entitled, Under its terms of reference, to attempt 

to raise standards for ,women· independently, without reference to existing standards 

for .hlen., but had as its main task the promotion of equality between the sex~•· 

She was by no means convinc·ed that important precacents did not exist in the 

work of other United Nations bodies for exceeding the narro~ limits imposed by 
\ 

tams ot reference, b\\t in any case it would surely be impossible to accuse the . 



E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 9 

Co•:":"i ssion or departing from its t~rms of r<:jference if it atte11.pted to take some 

positive action to _ improve the lot of women, ratho::r than content~ng itself with 

p!"oclaiming thair equality with men. 

One of the ways in which such action could be taken was by including in 

the draf't convention specific sc;feguards against discriwination on a number of 

grounds, as had been proposed by __ the Soviet Union representative. Similarly, it 

vas vital that any privilt:gas won must be equally enjoyed by women in Non-.::>elf­

Gcverning and Trust T~rritories, ~hich was the })tirpose of the Soviet Union 

representative's proposed new article 5. 

It seemd to her delo_gation highly regrettable that so l.1any mell!bers of- the 

~c.,..,; ssion should impport the principle underlying the Soviet Union an..mdments, and 

evan concede the extst~nce of the abuses which they·w ere intended to eliminate, yet 

l'ei'use to accept those a.u.endment·s on pur~ly formalistic grounds. 

Her deldgation would, of course, _vote for the Soviat Union proposal 

(t/Ct:.6/L.60), and hoped that other deltlgat.ions. woUlct follow suit. 

1-.. rs. POPOV.ii (Union of Sovi..;;t Socialist Republics) expressed her 

disappointment that the observations made by the znajority of the members of the 

Cc::--ission were hardly calculated to promote the preparation of a convention which 

_ w-;,uld t:;enuinely and ' unreservedly endow \oK>men -with the rights dua to them. 

Typical of' the stat~n11:mts which had hd -the effect of blockin6 progress, and 

which stood in Inarked contrast to the progressive. utterances of a few 

l repres.:ntatives, notably .those of _Poland the Byeloru~sian Sovidt Socialist Rc:lpublic, 

' were the int.::rv~ntiorts of tho Chilean. representative, whose objections to the 

1 .. 
Sovi~t Union proposal ip g,::mcral, and· in ~ar.ticular to the p~oposal that -specific 

provision should be made fvr guarding against discrimination, were based on the 
' . 

!amUar claim tlu;t SUCh provi~iO~l WaS al!'t.l<.;dy lll.ad(; cls~where 1 particularly in 

the Universal Declaration of Humo.n Rights and in the draft International Covenant 

I on H Rights But t.he ,fact that ruen as well as women suffered from 

· disc:: nation ~d not cunstitute grounds fur c.ffirr.dng that the Commission on 

j the 6t8tus of .~omen was not co:rap::tent to take up the cudt;dls on behalf of the 

' 



E/CN .6/SR .106 
page .10 

feLunine sex~ It was, indeed, clearly stated in the Commission's terms of 

reference that part of its task wes to coub.nt discrimination against women, and 

the question of whether that discrimination affected men· as well was entirelY 

irrelevant. It was therefore logical and proper that specific provision should 

be n:ade for the elimination of discrimination on the grounds enumerated in the 

first three articles of the Soviet Union proposal0 

.The same criticism- that they, too, went beyond, the Commission's tenns of 

reference - had been made by the Chilean and oth.;r representatives in r~spect of 

hrticles 4 nnd 5 of the 3oviat Union texto In spite of the fact that it was 

conceded that all necessary measures must be taken to prevent the convention from 

becorrd.ng a dead letter (Article 4) and to ensure that its provisions applied to 

all territories, wiwt.~ver t11t:ir s cetus, under tht.) jurisdiction of signatories 

(hrticle 5), support for the Soviet Union delegation's initiative was withheld 

on the 6rounds that it concerned a field that was barred to the Con~ussion • 

.She herself, on the contrary> was convinced that the aw~ndments to the 

· oriGinal draft convention cimbodied in hdr proposal were fully in accordance with, 

the Commission's terms of ref..Jrenco, and that their o.doption was essential if 

the convcJntion was to have any r!3al value c 

Mitis KALINOh;:;KA (Poland) agreed with the Soviot Union representative 

that adoption of the .::>oviet Union proposal would broaden the . b~~ sis o~ the 

convention ·..n.thout exceeding the Comridssion' s ten11s of r •:ference. Failure to 

adopt the Sovit::t Union amendments, on the other hand, w:>uld r.tean that the 

convention, if, indeed, it had any effect 'at all, would merely benefit a 

comparatively small nun1ber of already privileged womeno The Chilean representative 

appeared to fe~r th~t there was a danger of granting too many rights to women: 

what that and oth.::r repr~sentutives werG ap~xm:ntl;~~ .:tttP.n~tinc to do J was to 

secure the grant of too few .rights to too f.;;;w womeno haNover, that attempt was 

being justified by the invocation of such obsolete devices as obscurity of 

phraseology, procedural difficuLties, absence of competence etc. 



E/CN. 6/SR.l06 
page 11 

Miss van ~GHEN (International Council of Women), speaking at the 

· invitation of the CHAIRMAN, said that most of the proposals before the Commission 

included statements f.o the effect thcs.t women should be entitled to vote in all 

"elections". Electio17s were, however, not the only means by whi_ch a people 

expressed its will; ·there exi~teCi, for example, such· institutions as. the refer­

endum. It therefore seemed to he.r that it would be preferable either to state 

that- "women shall be en t1 tled to vote on equ'a.l terms with men 11 , omitting 'all 

refe;ence to ' elections, or to· adopt the Brazilian delegation's formula to the 

effect that nthe right of cl tizens to vote shsll not be ••••••• ", 
·-. 

Miss LUTZ (Brazil) said that she would ha~e refrained from commenting 

en the amendments suggested by other delegati('lls had it rtot been for the attacks 

on her own propoSCA.l, especially that ma.de .. by the representative of Chile. 

She expl4ined why same of the phrases used in the United. States and Chilean 

texts appeared to her less suitable thon those she had herself proposed, but 

dechred'th<.:.t she felt the difference was largely one of languiil.ge, rather·th-1n 
I 

Principle. The lr:mguage need not be so precise a.s it would havo to be if the 

e~vention were to be administered as law, since each sign~tory State would evolve 

, its own legislation in its own appropri~te langu.ige• 

The text proposed by the Soviet Union represent~tive, however, differed 

rudic'-l.lly in three respects from all the other texts before the Commission. First, 

it included in its first three -~rtiel.es the words "without any discriminu.tion on 

the grounds of race, colour, nationality, · birth, property status, lunguuge or 

religion". That she could not regdrd a.s necessary. The world was becoming 

mere~singly conscious of the evils of discrimination on those grounds, tlnd the 

CQmQss1on had heard from the New Zeal~nd representative of 'the successful solution 

of the rdcial problem in that countr,Y, ~ su~cess akin to thu.t achie~ed in Br~zil. 
It Was of interest, incidentally, th:l.t in ~ra:z;il the slaves had been emanciputed · 

. during the two regen_cies of a Princess. The suggested ex~mption fro~ discrimin-:-: 

4ion on grounds of m-t.tionality could not, she feit, in any case be gr<mted in the 

Present sk.te of the world. The right to vote in elections, and to stund for 

"lection to positions ·up to thCJ.t of He(:l.d of "" State, could only be recognized for 

n~tionu.ls of the Sts-~ote concerned. 

The Commission on the Stu.tus of ~/omen, which hi:ld been set up (:l.S the result 



E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 12 

of a Brazilian proposal, had one task and one t~sk only: that wae 1 to eliminate 

discrimination against women as women. It should not tr.y1 like Atlas, to take 

on its shoulders all the problema of the entire world. If it played its own 

part adequate~, it could confidently leave others in the appropriate United 

Nations bodies ~o de~l with discrimination thcit was not based on sex. 

With regard to the. special provision proposed by the Soviet Union . ~epreaenta­

tive, namely, that signatory States should undertake to extend the provisions of 

the convention to women in Trust and Non-Self-Governing Territories, her exper~ence 

led ~er to believe that the authorities responsible for administering such . 
' 

territories alrea~ appreciated the importance of keeping the status of the women 

in those territories at least no lower than that of the men, since otherwise the 

men were ultimately dragged down to the level of the women. She had heard · 

sta~ements to that effect made by_representatives of administering authorities at 

the 27th International Labour Conference in 1944. 

Another radical difference between the Soviet Union proposal and the others 

lay in the inclusion of the words "centr~l o.nd local" in Article 2. She con­

sid~red that expression to be objectionable, in that it impl~ed the existence of 

a highly centralized State administration instead of the demo~ratic system of 
'\ 

vesting control in the rank and file. Furthermore, it might cause diff~culties 

for Federal States1 where public and national bodies could be either municipal, 

state or federal, none o~ which was specifically central. 

Finally, the Soviet Union proposal proposed the inclusion of a fourth article .. .-.;..,. 
providing for an obligation on contracting parties to introduce legisldtive 

' I ' ' 

measures to implement the convention. It would perhaps be wise to seek the 

opinion of the International Law Commission before considering that point further. 

The ' representatives of Iran, Lebanon and the Netherlands had all spoken in 

favour of the text adopted by the Commission at its fifth session. She would 

not oppose the ddoptioh of. that text, provided it were given priority over all the 

amendments proposed tluring the present session. 

, Mrs. GOLDMAN (United States of America) declared her willingness to 

'wit.hdraw her own proposdl (E/CN .6/J...61) in favour uf the original te.>..-t, which had 

the support of the representatives of Iran and Lebanon, both of whom, believed· that 

the convention would help them to secure in. their OWn countries recognition of the 

I 
I 



political rights of . women. 

E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 13 

She would, howev~r, have to abstain from voting on the 

question of the appointment of women to public office, for redeons which she had 

already explained. 

Mrs. ROMNICIANO (International Association of Penal Law an-d International 

Bureau-for the Unification .of Penal Law), speaking at the invitation of the 

CHAIRMAN, said that she had witnessed with great satisfaction an attempt at com­

pronli:se whereby the Commission would revert to the text it had adopted at its 

fifth session. . .SJ..nce that text had been very carefully drafted by the Commiaaion1 

was extremely clear and concise, and corresponded exactly to the aim of the 

Commission, it would, she considered, be in the general interest if it were ­

retained. 

The CHAIRMAN -wished to comment, as representative of France, on the three 

proposal.s that were still before the Commission, and on the proposal made jointly. 

~ the representatives of Iran and the Lebanon. 

She approved of the spirit in which the Brazilian delegation's proposal 

(E/CN.6/L.58) had been drafted; she could not support it, ~owever, because it 
~ 

reproduced the ter.ms of the Bogot~ Convention. Following the lengthy discussion . 

to Which that issue had given rise at the Commission's fifth session, she had 

voted for a text of wider scope, and she could not now cast a vote which con­

flicted With her previous one. -

With regard to the Chilean proposal (E/CN.6/L.59), she thought it differed 

very little from the text Qdopted by the Commission at. its fifth session, but ~ad 

the advantage of 'Qeing shorter. 

Referring to the amendments which -the Chilean representative proposed to 

make to the Chilean text, she observed that, althougn she thought it possible to 

incorpor~te in that text the cllllendm.ent moved by the N'etherlands delegation, she 

found it more difficult to agree to the amendment based on the Soviet Union 

proposal. The reference to central and local bodies added little to the text_, 

and might create difficulties ~or F.ederal. States; hence it did not seem desirable 

to include it. · 

Nor could she support the proposal submitted by the Soviet Union delegation 

(E/CN.6/L.60), because it mentioned discrimination on the grounds of race, colour, 

nationality, birth, property _status; language .or .religion. She thought that the 

Commission must confine itself to discrimination on grounds of sex. 



E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 14 

In addition, Article 4 of the Soviet Union proposal was po~tless, since any 

State that signed and ratified a convention without reservation, implieit~ under­

took to adopt all legislative measures to ensure~t8 implementation. 

As to Article 5 of the Soviet Union propos~l, she thought that t~t, too, 

related to a questio~ outside the Commission's competence. She might add that 

she intended to revert to the question of the status o£ women in Trust and Non­

Self-Governing Territories when item .3(c) of the a.genda. was discussed; for, in 

Yiew of the results achieved in that field - to which she had devoted a good deal 

of her time - she thought that the Soviet Union representative's informati~n must 

now be out of date. 

· She wished to stress the -import~ce of including in the draft convention on . . 

political rights .of women a provision to the effect that women should have access 

to any public office on equal terms with men. It was undoubtedly l?ossible to 
. ' 

approach the drafting of the convention from two qifferent and equally defensible 

standpoints.. The Unit_ed States representative, for her pa.:rt, considered that the 

· Commission should endeavour to druw up as. s~ple a text as possible in order to 

enable those women who did not as yet enjoy the right to vote and to stand for 

election to secure those rights without delay. While she (the Chairman) fully 

appreciated that attitude, she thought tha.t the Commission should not overlook 

the. fact that its obj~ct was to ensure the enjoyment of full political rights by 

all women; and.acoess to public office on equal terms with men was one of those 

rights. 

A further reason, in her opinion, for drawing up forthwith_C!.S comprehensive 

a convention as possible was the fact that_ a new convention on political rights of 

women would undoubtedly not be contemplated for a long time to come. . She thought, 

furthermore, that the Commission should set un e~ple by firmly adhering to_ the 

principles it advocated in order to avoid giving other United Nations bodies any 

excuse for sacr~ficing part of those principles. 

The inclusion of a provision ensuring right ~! access to all public functions 

on equal terms with men might, it was .true 1 create di£11culties for gov~rnment~ 

anxious to accede to the convention. The French Government itself might experience 

such difficulties; put she considered that it was her duty as a member of the 

Commission to adhere to the views she had just expressed on that subject. ·. 



E/CN. 6 /SR .106 
page 15 

Moreover, still in her capacity-as representative of France, she would be 

prepareq -to agree to the suggestion put forward by the representatives of !Tan and 

Lebanon, which had already been supported by the representatives of the Nether­

lands .and the Unit~d States of America. That solution would have _the advantage 

of saving the Commission from having to go back on a decision taken at its fifth 

session, and might well, if the other proposals before the Commission failed to _ 

command a majority, provide a basis for unanimous agreement. 

Miss LUTZ {Brazil), speaking to a point of order, asked for a ruling 

from the Chair on the order ~n which the Commissio~ t s original text and the 

amendm.ente··thereto_wt)ul,:Lbe put to the vote. If the Commission's · 

text were voted on first, she would withdraw her own proposal (E/CN.6/L.58). 

The CHAIRMAN explained that the United Nations had no procedu~e that . 
applied specifically to the present situation. There were two possible coursss: 

the Con!nission could first take a decision on the three proposals still before it 

(E/CN.6/L.58, E/CN.6/L.59 and E/CN.6/L.6o); then, if none of those texts com­

manded a majority, it could take a decision on the proposal put forward by the 

representatives ~f Iran and Lebanon. Alternatively, the Commission could take 

decisions on all the proposals before it, including that of the Iranian and 

Lebanese representatives, and adopt the one that commanded most votes. 

Miss LUTZ (Brazil) suggested that a vote should be taken on whether the . 

Commission wished to vote first on the original text, or on the three substitute 

texts proposed by the rdpresentatives of the Soviet Union, Brazil and Chile 

respectively. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) wished to state, in reply to the Soviet Union 

represent~tive's remarks, that she believed her argument to have been consistent, 

but would not take up the Commission's time in further explanation. In reply to 

that representative's question concerning her views on the new Article 4 in the 

Soviet Union proposal, she said that .she did not think that the inclusion of such 

an article would make :my real !fifference to - the ilnplementation of the convention. · 

She regretted that the representati~e of Brazil should have construed her 

criticism of the Brazilian proposal as an attack, but suggested that they should 

agree to - differ~ 

With regard to voting procedure, she ~uggested that the suggestion made by 



E/CN,6/SR.l06 
page 16 

the representatives of Iran and Lebanon should be regarded as a proposal to am~d 

the Chilean proposal (E/cN.6/L,S9).: · Al"ticle 1 in the Chilean text was identical 1 

~th Artic~e 1 of the Commission's draft; and .she would accept Articles 2 and 3 

of the Commission's draft in plac~ of Article 2 in her own proposal. The 

remaining divergencies were or minor importance. If the Conmdssion adopted her 

proposal, an introductory sentence noting · the conunents of governments on the text 

approved at the Commission's fifth session, and a reference to General Assembly 

resolution 56 (I), neither of which was, of course, included in the first draft, 

would have to be added. 

Mrs.~ GOlDMAN (united States of America) suggested that rule. 60 of the . 

rules of procedure would show which proposal should be ~ot~d on first. She 

point.d out that she had withdra"R\ her own proposal in favour of the sugges.tion 

made b;y 'the representatives of two countries where women did not. yet have the 

· vote, and not ~n favour of the Chilean proposal. 

Mrs. POPOVA (Union or Soviet Socialist Republics) suggested that the 

pr~posals under discussion should be referred to the Committee on Resolutions, 

Which could report the next day, probably with an agreed text that could be put 

to the vote. 

Mrs. FIGUEROA (Chile) supported that suggestion • . 
- . 

Miss LUTZ '(Brazil) could not agree to 'the procedure suggested by the 

Chilean .representative. If any one proposal might be regarded as an amendment 

to an;r other, the proces . .. could be continued indefinite1~. She hoped that the 

Commission would agree to vote first on the draft agreed upon at the fifth sessioo, 

either out of regard for the proposal made by the delegations ot Iran a.nd Lebanon, 

or on the grounds that, as an agreed deoj,JJion of the Commission, it had higher 

priority than any proposal put forward by a single member of the Commission. 

· Mrs. de l'OFFICIAL (Dominican Republic) asked whether the position was 

not covered by rule 60 of the ~lea of procedure, as suggested by the United . 

States representative. 
The CHA~ eaid that in her opinion ,rule 60 did not apply to the case 

in point. 

Ae it was an eXtremely important . qUestion, which hb.d' just given rise to 

exhaustive discussions. in the Conmiaaion, aha· thought it might be advisable to 



E/CN.6/SR.l06 
page 17 

dopt the Soviet Union· representative~a suggestion, and to refer all the texts to 

he Committee on Resolutions, which would endeavour, in collaboration with the 

ponsors of the various proposals, to draft a . compromise text. Such a text would 

robably succeed in commanding a larger majority, a matter of some importance. 

If the Committee on Resolutions succeeded in drawing up an agreed text, she 

~uld put it to the vote at the next meeting, without re-opening the discussion 

·n the substantive issue. · ·otherwise, the Collmission would have to take votes on 

11 the various proposals before it. 

The Soviet Union suggestion that all the texts bet~re the Colllniseion &h.ould. 

>e referred to the Committee on Resolutions was adopted unanimous],y. 

The meeting rose ut 5.30 p.m. 




